GFO-20-303: Advanced Plug Load and Smart Exterior Lighting 
Questions and Answers
	Addendum 1	
(Questions 65 and 66 have been added)
Administrative/General Questions
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.1
	Can a company apply for multiple groups?

	A.1
	Yes. When applying for multiple groups, each application is for a distinct project as indicated in Sections 1.A. and IV.E. Also, please consider whether you have available resources to implement multiple projects.

	Q.2
	We would like to use direct rates. As a small company, the fringe rates & all the other calculations are more difficult for us to use. Will it be viewed negatively or score the financials at a lower rate or can we use direct rates in our labor calculation?

	A.2
	The solicitation budget workbooks require that all rates are broken down to fringe, indirect, and, for major subcontractors, profit. 

	Q.3
	When will a recording of this session be published?

	A.3
	Yes, a recording of the pre-application workshop can be found in the following link: https://www.energy.ca.gov/event/funding-workshop/2020-08/pre-application-workshop-gfo-20-303-advanced-plug-load-and-smart 

	Q.4
	Can you publish the list of the zoom participants? 

	A.4
	Yes, the list of participants from the pre-application workshop can be found in the following link: https://www.energy.ca.gov/solicitations/2020-07/gfo-20-303-advanced-plug-load-and-smart-exterior-lighting-systems 

	Q.5
	In your slides, for group 1 the available funding is $1M and for group 2 it is $2M.  In the solicitation, you mention group 1 may fund 1-3 projects and group 2 also may fund 1-3 projects.   Is it 1 project for each group or for multiple?

	A.5
	There is $1 million available for group 1. The minimum amount that can be requested is $500,000. For group 1, there is a possibility of 1-2 awards depending the grant amount requested and awarded. There is a minimum of $2 million available for group 2. The minimum amount that can be requested is $1,000,000. For group 2, there is a possibility of 1-2 awards. As indicated in Section I.D.3., the Energy Commission reserves the right to reallocate funding between any of the groups.

	Q.6
	My question is about the match scoring criteria – in the scoring table it states that if you get 10-20% over the minimum match requirement you get an extra 1 pt.  Is this scaled?  For example, if I were to budget a project at $6.5M, would I need $650k over the minimum match to receive 1 point?  Or could I get fraction points?  If I provide 15% over, would that be worth 1.5 points?

	A.6
	No. There are no fraction points. Any additional match amount over the required amount will be scored according to the table. For instance, if you provide between 10% and 20% match above the minimum, you will get one point. If you provide15% match above the minimum, you will get 1 point. 

	Q.7
	Do companies with offices outside of California (non-California entities) qualify to submit letters of support for services provided?

	A.7
	Yes.

	Q.8

	If a global company is headquartered outside of California but has a California office and we interface with the California office, are funds considered spent outside or within US?

	A.8
	Please see Section I.L. in the solicitation manual for information on what constitutes funds spent in California.  In your example, funds could be considered spent in California if the following requirements are met:
· [bookmark: _GoBack]Funds are considered spent in California for direct labor category and all categories calculated based on direct labor (e.g., fringe benefits, indirect costs and profit) are paid to individuals that pay California state income taxes on wages received for work performed under the agreement. Payments made to out-of-state workers do not count as “funds spent in California.” And 
· Business transactions (e.g., material and equipment purchases, leases, and rentals) are entered into with a business located in California. 

	Q.9
	Are there any specific stipulations for goods and services to qualify as “in kind?” (i.e. consultation/time, use of equipment on their site, loan of equipment, goods and supplies, etc.)

	A.9
	Match funds must be spent only during the agreement term, either before or concurrently with EPIC funds. All match that is not cash will be considered as in-kind. Consultation/time, goods and supplies can be considered as “in kind” match. Equipment costs can only be considered if it is used solely for the project and if the value of the contribution is based on documented market values or book values,  and depreciated or amortized over the term of the project using generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Please provide this justification in the Commitment Letter (Attachment 10). Please also see section I.K. of the solicitation manual for more information on in-kind match and section IV.F on how in-kind match will be evaluated.

	Q.10
	Specifically related to in-kind matching, would additional arrangements be acceptable, such as BEMS upgrades/maintenance or support for building management staff related to the project?

	A.10
	This would be considered as in-kind match if the upgrades and support occur during the course of the research project.



Group 1: Analyze and Test Total Energy Consumption of Plug Load Devices to Support California Codes and Standards for Non-covered Products
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.11
	Questions for the list of devices in Group 1.  It seems clear there is  preference for information technology type devices, 5 out of 6 categories are office equipment, computer and networks, you do include a category for lab equipment but I would like to confirm that you do have a preference to include information technology devices.

	A.11
	There is no preference on information technology devices over lab equipment. Both groups of equipment have been identified as not having California or Federal standards. The preference is devices that have high energy savings potential and pathway to codes and standards.

	Q.12
	What about other equipment that is not on the list? I think you said earlier that they can be considered but they would have to be justified. Can you provide any more information about that justification?

	A.12
	Other groups may be considered with justification as to why those products would have high potential to be adopted through codes and standards. In the justification, include information such as total product stock, total product shipment, installed base, annual energy consumption, potential cost effectiveness and status of any federal pre-emption consideration.

	Q.13
	What about things that are already included in the standards, and this informs possible changes to standards, is that fair game?

	A.13
	No. We are looking for products not currently covered through federal or California codes and standards.

	Q.14
	You have 5 categories for devices. You have workstation computers, what does that mean? Most computers in lab or in the office are regular computers.  So, for workstations, are you referring to high end supercomputers or regular computer stations? For devices not listed here, we need justification.  For example, in large or public universities or national labs, we have lots of devices like robotics, 3D printers, and scanners.  All these devices also plug in the plug load. There is no way to monitor the energy consumption of them and we just plug them in, and they consume a lot of energy in the labs. In the solicitation, it only mentions incubators and valve hoods.    For other devices in the lab, such as robotics, 3D printers and scanners, all these devices like AR and VR devices or the cameras, can these be considered into this category?  

	A.14
	Section 1.C of the manual did not specify “workstation computers”. Under Commercial Equipment, subgroup 4c was listed as commercial computers. This subgroup was left general so that proposers could justify devices to be tested that have the highest potential for adoption through codes and standards. The list of lab equipment is not exhaustive. Other lab equipment may be considered but must be justified as to why that product has a high potential to be adopted through codes and standards. See response to Question 12 for information to be included in your justification.

	Q.15
	For group 1, what are the bounds of "commercial computers" and what technology does this specifically refer to? e.g. Workstation desktops, laptops, servers, embedded controls-- which of any of these could be considered within this category?

	A.15
	Please see the answer to Question 14.  Please be aware that beginning in 2019, standards for desktop computers, thin clients, mobile gaming systems, portable all-in-ones, and notebook computers became effective in California. Any recommended future code change must go beyond these requirements. For information, https://energycodeace.com/download/21326/file_path/fieldList/T20%20Computers.pdf   

	Q.16
	Specific question about the boundaries of the groups for Group 1:  What specific metrics are considered to justify additional categories beyond those stated for evaluation? Are there any suggested quantitative guidelines?  (e.g. projected market growth, device population AEC, population in IOU territory, potential for savings with intervention)

	A.16
	Applicants should explain why a subgroup not listed has high potential for adoption through codes and standards and high energy savings potential. Applicants should answer the additional Project Narrative questions in section I.C. of the solicitation manual. More specifically, the applicants must respond to the areas listed in the response to Question 12 to justify why the product has high potential for adoption through codes and standards.

	Q.17
	For devices with a specified subgroup, are there any diversity requirements in order for the device to be considered representative of the current or projected market (e.g. vintage, breadth of product features, number of vendors/mfgrs., etc.)?

	A.17
	There are no diversity requirements, such as vintage, product features, and number of vendors/manufacturers.

	Q.18
	Commercial devices are often used in different spaces, i.e. private/office, education, non-profit, etc.  Given sufficient justification, could a device in common usage in both office and non-office environments be considered for investigation?

	A.18
	Yes, if it has potential for adoption through codes and standards.

	Q.19
	Following on the previous question, is it acceptable to study the same category of products, i.e. office devices, for both the residential and commercial divisions, given that there may be some redundancy/overlap of equipment?

	A.19
	Yes. But the applicant must still meet requirements for this group and include at least 2 groups of commercial devices and 1 group of residential devices. Each group must test a minimum of 5 devices per group for a total of 15 different devices. The 15 devices to be tested must be unique and the same device cannot be counted twice, such as for residential and commercial buildings. Test a minimum of 15 devices. Multiples of the same devices may be tested, and these devices must be spread across 3 subgroups. Applicants must decide whether the device will be considered under the residential or commercial building category.

	Q.20
	When considering devices and categories within Group 1 and justifying impact, how much stock should be given to current market/saturation versus projected future market saturation?  

	A.20
	In justifying the device’s potential applicability for future codes and standards, please include references to explain both current and future market potential  

	Q.21
	The impact of COVID-19 has been projected to create long-term ripples in the way business is conducted both at home and work, having “commercial” impacts across both.  Are the projected work-from-home and hybrid office-home work environment trends within scope for residential or commercial product categories for Group 1?

	A.21
	Yes.

	Q.22
	Considering individual device loads absent of device population, categories are naturally evolving. How much priority should be given to a) categories with static device energy usage b) categories that are improving due to natural technology development (absent of specific codes and standards work) but can be pushed to improve faster c) categories that may be increasing in device energy use?

	A.22
	All the categories listed have equal priority if they can be shown to have potential for codes and standards changes and are not regulated by state or federal regulations.



Group 2: Demonstrate the Integration of Smart Plug Load Controls and Building Energy Management Systems (BEMS) in Commercial Buildings
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.23
	Regarding the metrics on savings and payback, does the 20% savings include real energy or cost?  If cost, does it include demand charges because the payback is on cost?

	A.23
	The 20% savings is based on energy (e.g., kWh) savings of the plug load energy use at the demonstration site. The simple payback can include cost savings for both electricity (kWh) and demand (kW).  However, each must be delineated separately along with the assumptions for each of the savings.

	Q.24
	Are the savings from the plugs we control or all the plugs in the building?

	A.24
	The 20% savings come from reduce plug load energy use of the building(s).

	Q.25
	How is the baseline calculated for the savings for plugs? Are we estimating or are there rules used to evaluate that?

	A.25
	In completing the Project Narrative (Attachment 3) for group 2, here are things to include:

a. Baseline building energy use is the electricity consumption of the demonstration site (100,000 square feet building). The target energy use is the estimate based on combined use of the smart plugs and BEMs. In providing the estimate, provide all assumptions used in determining energy savings, such as electricity and/or demand savings, operating hour reductions, and any other quantifiable, direct savings.
b. Measurement and Verification (M&V) Plan (see also Section II.2.4 and Technical Approach, item g) describes how energy savings and other benefits from the demonstrated technology will be measured. This M&V plan must be included in the project narrative. There are no specific requirements for the M&V plan. However, the robustness of the plan to deliver credible project results will be evaluated.

	Q.26
	If the company selected for plugs has recurring fees, like a paid subscription, how is that counted in the payback?  

	A.26
	Any recurring fees will be included as the total cost of the equipment. For the purpose of this solicitation, the simple payback calculation is as follows:

Simple payback = (equipment cost + installation cost + annual recurring fees) ÷ annual energy and demand cost savings

	Q.27
	Does the CEC require proposals to integrate plug loads inside BEMS platforms, or can both plug loads and BEMS be integrated into a third-party hierarchical platform?

	A.27
	The project must integrate advanced smart plug controls into an existing BEMS and not from a third-party hierarchical platform.

	Q.28
	On page 9 of the solicitation, it says the combined plug load controls and BEMS together must be currently at TRL 6-7, but since this about the integration of the two, it means that separately each is at 6-7?

	A.28
	Integrated smart plug load controls and BEMS are currently available but not widely deployed. These current systems are at TRL 6-7. It is the goal of this research, to improve the integration to result in widespread deployment and increase in TRL level to 8 and 9. 

	Q.29
	So, the integration of the two for group 2 is about showing integration at the 8-9 level?

	A.29
	Yes. Integration of the two technologies should be at TRL 8-9 by the end of the project and be deployable to other buildings, assuming the research challenges are overcome and the goals ae met.

	Q.30
	Under Group 2, will the CEC allow for proposed smart plug load control platforms and the proposed BEMS platform to separately meet the TRL 6-7 current state requirement? If not, can the CEC provide examples (perhaps from past projects) that have already achieved integration between plug load control and BEMS platforms at TRL 6-7 levels?

	A.30
	No, the integrated smart plug load controls and BEMS must currently be at TRL 6-7. See response to Question 28 and the reference documents in Section I.J of the solicitation manual for examples of existing smart plug controls with integration capability.

	Q.31
	On page 10 of the solicitation, on the 1st bullet on page, it says that “the Scope of Work must demonstrate that integrated technology can be done at multiple facilities.”  Do you mean to really demonstrate at multiple facilities or address that this can be repeated at another facility?

	A.31
	The technology should be capable of being replicated in multiple similar buildings, beyond the demonstration site. The technology should not be applicable only at just one site. We are not interested in funding one-off projects.

	Q.32
	Specific question about the scope of the test site for Group 2:  For the demonstration facility, is this intended to be a commercial office building specifically or is a mixed-use space (including laboratory, presentation, office) of interest?  Can a large institutional public-sector building work versus a private commercial building?

	A.32
	Yes, all of the buildings described are eligible if the requirements of Section I.C.b of the solicitation manual are met, such as: 1) the commercial building(s) contains at least 100,0000 square feet, and 2) the building or buildings are controlled by an existing BEMs that can control at least 50 plug load devices. Multiple buildings totaling 100,000 square feet must all be controlled by the same BEMs.  See also response to Question 38.

	Q.33
	Specific question about requirements of Group 2's focus:  Cybersecurity is often paralleled with questions about user and privacy.  Is user privacy as a specific subset that is of value to be considered in this discussion?

	A.33
	Yes.

	Q.34
	Can you define ‘BEMS’ with regards to group 2? Does this refer to building automation systems or would it also include solutions built on top of these automation systems?

	A.34
	For the purpose of this solicitation, Building Energy Management Systems (BEMS) directly monitors and controls major energy using equipment in buildings and does not, Include solutions built on top of the BEMs, such as variable frequency drives.

	Q.35
	For Group 2, training and education are mentioned as potential challenges. Are behavioral modification and intervention strategies within the scope of this group topic?

	A.35
	It may be considered and included in the scope of work but must not be the main focus of the research. 

	Q.36
	On page 9, the CEC mentions a goal is to "increase functionality, including demand flexibility and load management"
How does the CEC differentiate between “demand flexibility” and “load management”?

	A.36
	Load Management is defined as: “any utility program or activity that is intended to reshape deliberately a utility's load duration curve.” 

Demand flexibility is the ability for demand-side resources to automatically modulate their energy use and services in response to signals received in time increments that are hourly or more frequent.

These definitions have been added to key words in the GFO manual.

	Q.37
	Do the minimum 50 individual loads that have to be controlled be different kinds of devices or can they be multiples of a device type?

	A.37
	They can be multiples of the same device.

	Q.38
	To meet the 100,000 sq. ft minimum requirement with multiple sites, can pilot implementation and automation activities be concentrated at one physical site (e.g., hardware installed at one 20,000 sq. feet site), so long as the BEMS is also monitoring additional sites that total at least 100,000 sq. ft?

	A.38
	No, the advanced smart plug controllers and existing BEMs must be demonstrated either: 1) in one large commercial building of at least 100,000 sq. ft or 2) in multiple buildings that total 100,000 sq. ft. If controlled by the same BEMs.

	Q.39
	The GFO stipulates a 20 percent reduction in plug load electricity usage. If the 20 percent is just for plug loads, would additional savings from other building loads through advanced integration efforts receive extended consideration?

	A.39
	No.

	Q.40
	Must the 50 devices represent 50 different device types/categories, or may there be multiple devices of the same make/model?  

	A.40
	See response to Question 37.

	Q.41
	Are systems composed of multiple individual devices considered as an individual set of devices or an integrated system (e.g. a computer/monitor/desktop printer; or laptop/dock; or machine tool/control computer/monitor serving as a single system)?

	A.41
	Each device is considered an individual device regardless of whether it combined as a single system.  In your example, each of the devices listed, such as computer, monitor, printer, would be considered individual devices.

	Q.42
	Do all devices need to stay resident within the building, for example, can portable devices (i.e. laptops) be allowed to leave during periods of the study and still be counted?  

	A.42
	All devices must stay within the building. Portable devices are not eligible and cannot be included. 

	Q.43
	If multiple buildings can be considered with a shared BEMS system to meet the square footage requirements, Is this within the scope of shared space (buildings adjoined, buildings in immediate vicinity, common BEMS license networked system fundamentally integrated, single physical shared system, distributed linked system)?

	A.43
	Multiple buildings that total 100,000 sq. ft can be considered if controlled by the same BEMs. See response to Question 38.

	Q.44
	For Group 2, the RFP asks support letters from stakeholders. Which groups are considered as stakeholders (such as building owners, building energy management system developers, plug load device manufacturers, or plug load management system developers)?

	A.44
	All listed would be considered stakeholders. Refer to Section III.D.10 and Attachment 10 that defines a project stakeholder as an entity or individual that will benefit from or be involved in the project.

	Q.45
	Is the primary goal to look for an improved strategy for T24 requirements for plug control?

	A.45
	No, the primary goal is to demonstrate advanced smart plug controllers that can easily and inexpensively connect to existing BEMs to result in electricity savings and other benefits and  will reach TRL 8-9 at the end of the agreement and can be deployed across multiple commercial buildings at the end of the project.

	Q.46
	Are demand response applications of interest, e.g., using plug load controls to turn things off for price response or for resiliency?

	A.46
	Yes.

	Q.47
	Is the primary focus actually to identify enhancements to make it easier for building owners to control and coordinate plug loads, rather than simply integrating controls with BEMS?

	A.47
	The primary focus is to create a simple BEMS platform that is easy for building owners/operators to use in order to control end-uses such as HVAC, lighting, and plug loads that can be universally applied to other BEMS. 

	Q.48
	Is CEC only interested in existing plug load control products like smart strips and outlets, or also emerging smart devices that can be directly controlled over the network (and control “plug load /miscellanea” equipment?

	A.48
	Emerging smart devices may be considered if they can easily integrate with an existing BEMS.

	Q.49
	Are electric heaters/ window AC controlled by a smart plug acceptable end uses to be controlled by the plug load control?

	A.49
	Yes, so long as the device is plugged into an electrical outlet.

	Q.50
	Can we consider BEMS any building-level control system for HVAC and lighting including traditional building automation (e.g., JCI, Siemens) AND newer supervisory control systems that perform Automated System Optimization (e.g., https://buildingiq.com/).

	A.50
	Yes. The focus is on the ability to include plug load controls into existing BEMs.

	Q.51
	Does “remotely” mean we need to enable control via plug mobile app, or it just means we need to control it using the BEMS central system? Traditional BEMS do not typically have apps.

	A.51
	It is the latter, controlled via BEMS central system.

	Q.52
	Is this 20% of the energy controlled by the controllers installed (e.g., 50+ plugs) or 20% of the total plug load for the building (whole building energy - HVAC - lighting)?

	A.52
	The research goal is at least 20% reduction of the total plug load energy use of the building(s).

	Q.53
	How is the baseline plug load calculated if the end-uses are currently not submetered?

	A.53
	Existing plug load circuits can be isolated and measured before intervention.

	Q.54
	How is the payback calculated if the plug controller manufacturer has a business model that includes a recurrent fee (paid subscription)? Payback is typically calculated only for an initial investment.

	A.54
	 Refer to the response to Question 26 for how recurrent fees are to be incorporated into the payback calculation.

	Q.55
	What should be considered capital (investment) cost for the payback: cost of the hardware? Hardware + installation?

	A.55
	Hardware plus installation are considered as the capital investment. Refer to the response to Question 26 for the simple payback calculation used in this solicitation. 

	Q.56
	Several reports in the literature, including the NREL field study referenced in the GFO show plugs are not cost effective (payback is tens of years). Would it be possible to include additional value streams that decrease utility cost (e.g., demand response) or reduce operational cost to estimate the payback?

	A.56
	No, simple payback must only consider energy savings and demand savings.

	Q.57
	If the proposed solution will provide additional benefits (such as asset management), can the system cost be apportioned between them and the energy savings?

	A.57
	No. Additional benefits may be included, but not included in the simple payback calculation.



Group 3: Develop and Demonstrate Smart Exterior Solid-State Lighting in Low-Income or Disadvantaged Communities
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.58
	Is there a requirement to only consider solar exterior lights in Group 3?

	A.58
	Yes.

	Q.59
	For Group 3, just clarifying that we must install 40 luminaires minimum. 4 sites x 10 luminaire/site = 40.

	A.59
	Yes. Please note that this is a minimum. Applicants that install more than the minimum would be considered more favorably under Impacts and Benefits for California IOU Ratepayers.  An addendum will be added to Section I.C.c. for you to discuss the number luminaires you propose to install relative to the funding that you are requesting.

	Q.60
	For Group 3, we have a master development located in a disadvantaged community that involves affordable, market rate, commercial and green space. We weren't sure if new construction associated with just the affordable housing or the master development as a whole is eligible. The affordable housing will be all electric with solar. Does it seem like this type of development would qualify as an applicant?

	A.60
	Yes. This type of development could be eligible as a demonstration site if it meets the requirements in Table 4 of Section I.C.c. of the manual. For any new development or non-retrofit application:
· The baseline must be based on current energy efficiency standards (e.g., 2019 Title 24, part 6 California Energy Code). The research goal of 20% reduction in energy use must use LED lighting as the baseline.
· CEC grant funds will only be limited to the hybrid, grid flexible integrated luminaire cost and installation. The balance of the cost can be included as match.

	Q.61
	Can you clarify what the intention is for the column headers in the table provided in Attachment 3 Project Narrative Group 3?

	A.61
	The question refers to Table X: Competition Matrix in the Project Narrative Attachment for Group 3 and the following describes each of the headings:
· Comparable Attribute: These are attributes that will be used to compare the proposed technology (applicant’s technology) with the current leading technology and the competing technology.
· Applicant’s Technology: This is the technology that is the subject of the grant. If multiple technologies are proposed, then complete Table X for each technology proposed in the grant. 
· Current Leading Technology: This is the standard technology that is typically installed. This could be just a standard luminaire without all the features listed in Section I.C.c.
· Competing Technology: This is a technology that may have all the features listed in Section I.C.c. and is a competitor to the applicant’s proposed- technology.

Table X compares the characteristics of the applicant’s proposed technology versus the standard   and competing technologies to show the value and advancements of the applicant’s technology. Please respond accordingly and add a table number.

	Q. 62
	There are 2 requirements in the project narrative:
0. For the four selected disadvantaged or low-income communities, install minimum of 10 smart luminaires, Attachment 11 showing commitment for these sites and addresses.
0. Identify at least one building owner/municipality who may have interest in demonstrating and deploying the technology if the requirements in Table 4 are achieved
1. Can these be the same or have overlap?  
2. What is the difference between these two requirements? 
3. Should those bullets be referencing Attachment 10 and Table 4, instead of Attachment 11 and Table 3, respectively?


	A.62
	1. They could be the same if the building owner/municipality installs more smart luminaires beyond those funded by the grant. Example:  The grant pays for only a portion of the luminaires in a city. There are still more smart luminaires to install and the building owner/municipality indicates support for doing these additional installations in the future.
2. The first requirement request that the four selected communities provide a letter that they are committed to the project and provide all the requirements listed in Attachment 10 in the commitment letter.  Item b is asking to identify a building owner or municipality who may be interested in the project. As indicated to the previous response, this could be the same demonstration site, if they are committed to do more beyond the demonstration site, or different.  The letter for item b can be in the form of a support letter as referenced in Attachment 10.
3. Yes, the bullets should be referencing Attachment 10 and Table 4 and not Attachment 11 and Table 3, respectively. An addendum will correct this error.

	Q.63
	Regarding the Table 4 requirement for "Grid flexible capabilities to maximize use of low/no carbon electricity sources with potential for dimming during low use times"

a. Please elaborate on the requirement for "potential for dimming during low use times".  Is this required at the system-level or individual luminaire?
b. Can demand-limiting technology or surgical ability to turn off a bank of lights while leaving others on be considered to have the same effect as "dimming during low use times"?
c. Does the CEC require all 10 smart luminaire products to meet the dimming requirement? Or can proposals approach with a basket of technologies where some dim and the ones that don’t dim are used for applications that leave some lights on?

	A.63
	a. Dimming is required at the individual luminaire level.
b. No, luminaires must have features to dim individually.
c. All luminaires must have the capabilities to dim individually.


	Q.64
	Regarding the requirements: "For the four selected disadvantaged or low-income communities, install a minimum of 10 smart luminaires" and "Identify at least two lighting equipment manufacturers who may be interested in commercializing and advancing the technology after the grant is completed."
a. Does "10 smart luminaires" refer to distinct products for a total of 10 different products installed across all four sites? 
b. Does 10 refer to the number of instances of smart luminaires so that 10 of the same 2 products can be installed at each of 4 sites?

	A.64
	a. Luminaires can be the same or different and distinct products as long as they meet all requirements in Table 4. 
b. Yes, 10 smart luminaries must be installed in each of the 4 sites and they can be the same or different products. Also, 10 is the minimum and installing more relative to the grant funds requested will be viewed more favorably during proposal evaluation as indicated in the response to question 59. 



Addendum Questions and Answers
	Number
	Question/Answer

	Q.65
	For Group 1, the instructions say to choose 3 subgroups and test 5 devices per subgroups, for a minimum of 15 different devices. 
a) Does this mean 15 device types?
b) Does it mean one device type (e.g., printers) for each subgroup, for which at least 5 individual devices of different models should be tested? 
c) If you mean 15 device types, are you expecting only one individual device to be tested per type, or assuming that some minimum number of individual devices would need to be tested to get a good sample?

	A.65
	We’ve removed the requirement for testing a minimum of 5 devices per subgroup. A device is an individual type of equipment (such as printers) Applicants are still required to test a minimum of 15 devices from 3 subgroups as defined in Section I,C.a. of the solicitation manual. Multiples of the same device (e.g., more than one printer) may be tested.  Applicants must discuss the following in the project narrative: a) description of  the number of devices to be tested for each subgroup and for each individual device type, and b) justification for the number of devices selected for each subgroup and why that number is a reasonable sample size for documenting energy savings and benefits for future codes and standards consideration. An addendum to the solicitation manual was made to include these changes to Group 1. Please see Addendum 2. Based on these changes the following are the responses to the questions:
a) No. We’ve modified the GFO to indicate that this can be any 15 devices, such as a mix of different device types or multiples of different models/makes.
b) No. We’ve eliminated the requirement of 5 devices per subgroup. You must test a minimum of 15 devices across 3 subgroups.
c) As indicated previously, we are allowing the testing of any 15 devices and leaving it up to the applicant to decide what is a reasonable sample size for each device to be tested.


	Q.66
	Group 1 states:  "A minimum of 5 devices must be selected from each group (total of 15 devices) as described previously, with a minimum of 2 manufacturing partners associated with the selected devices." 
a) Does this mean we need to identify all the manufacturers of the devices to be tested and bring on at least two Project Partners per device, who must all agree to have their devices tested and submit commitment letters?
b) Does it mean that each type of device cannot be a unique item but must be made by at least two different manufacturers?

	A.66
	a) No, you need to provide a minimum of 2 manufacturing partners for the entire project. The selected manufacturing partners are related to any of the 15 devices tested. If it is determined that one or more of the devices have potential for codes and standards, we want to make sure that there is available manufacturing capability for these devices.
b) Our preference is to have devices that are not unique and manufactured by multiple companies. However, this is not a requirement since some unique devices could have high potential for codes and standards because of its inherent energy use. 







September 2020	Page 9 of 17	GFO-20-303-01
Questions and Answers             Advanced Plug Load and Smart
 Exterior Lighting Systems

